INLAND

Minutes of the Executive Committee Meeting
December 12, 2025

Date of approval: Initials:

Call to order: Per Brown Act guidelines, the Inland Adult Education Consortium Executive Committee was
held via Zoom: https://sbccd-edu.zoom.us/j/89831893113 on Friday, December 12, 2025. The meeting

convened at 8:09 am. Director Dr. Emma Diaz and Consultant Mr. Mitch Rosin conducted the meeting.
Minutes recorded by Ms. Jessica Arellano Velasco. The public is welcome to join virtually, or via in-person

attendance:

District

Meeting Address

Colton Joint USD

1212 Valencia Dr., Colton, CA, 92324 — Superintendent’s Conference Room

Crafton Hills College

11711 Sand Canyon Rd., Yucaipa, CA, 92399 — President’s Conference Room

Redlands USD

20 W. Lugonia Ave., Redlands, CA, 92374 — Superintendent’s Conference Room

Rialto USD

260 S. Willow Ave., Rialto, CA, 92376 — Superintendent’s Conference Room

Rim-of-the-World USD

24740 San Moritz Way, Crestline, CA, 92325 — Superintendent’s Conference
Room

San Bernardino City USD

777 N. F St., San Bernardino, CA, 92410 — Superintendent’s Conference Room

San Bernardino COE

601 N. E St., San Bernardino, CA, 92410 — Superintendent’s Conference Room

San Bernardino Valley
College

701 S. Mt. Vernon Ave., San Bernardino, CA, 92410 — President’s Conference
Room

Yucaipa-Calimesa Joint
usD

12797 3rd St., Yucaipa, CA, 92399 — Superintendent’s Conference Room

Executive Committee Members in attendance

Mr. Mauricio Arellano
Ms. Cali Binks

Mr. Juan Cabral

Dr. Gilbert Contreras
Dr. Kevin Horan

Dr. Frank Miranda

Dr. Paul Sevillano

Dr. Carol Tsushima

Members not in attendance
Mr. Alejandro Alvarez

Superintendent, San Bernardino City Unified School District
Superintendent, Yucaipa-Calimesa Joint Unified School District
Superintendent, Redlands Unified School District

President, San Bernardino Valley College

President, Crafton Hills College

Superintendent, Colton Joint Unified School District
Rim-Of-the-World

Administrator, Alliance for Education & SBCROP, SBCSS

Superintendent, Rialto Unified School District




Others Present

Quorum: 3 K12 plus 1 CC

Establish Quorum: 3 K12 plus 1 CC

Member Name Attending

Dr. Frank Miranda, Superintendent, Colton Joint Unified School District X

Dr. Kevin Horan, President, Crafton Hills College X

Mr. Juan Cabral, Superintendent, Redlands Unified School District

x

Mr. Alejandro Alvarez, Superintendent, Rialto Unified School District

Mr. Paul Sevillano, Rim-Of-the-World

Mr. Mauricio Arellano, Superintendent, San Bernardino City Unified School District

Dr. Carol Tsushima, Administrator, Alliance for Education & SBCROP, SBCSS

Dr. Gilbert Contreras, President, San Bernardino Valley College

X [ X [ X | X | X

Ms. Cali Binks, Superintendent, Yucaipa-Calimesa Joint Unified School District

1. Approval of the Minutes
1.1 October 24, 2025

Motion: Approval of October 24, 2025, IAEC Executive Committee Meeting Minutes.
Motion by: Mr. Mauricio Arellano

Second by: Mr. Paul Sevillano

Discussion: None

Member Name AYE | NAY | Absent

Dr. Frank Miranda, Superintendent, Colton Joint Unified School District X

Dr. Kevin Horan, President, Crafton Hills College X

Mr. Juan Cabral, Superintendent, Redlands Unified School District X

Mr. Alejandro Alvarez, Superintendent, Rialto Unified School District X

Mr. Paul Sevillano, Rim-Of-the-World X

Mr. Mauricio Arellano, Superintendent, San Bernardino City Unified School X
District

Dr. Carol Tsushima, Administrator, Alliance for Education & SBCROP, SBCSS

Dr. Gilbert Contreras, President, San Bernardino Valley College X

Ms. Cali Binks, Superintendent, Yucaipa-Calimesa Joint Unified School District

The Minutes of the Inland Adult Education Consortium Executive Committee Meeting on October 24,
2025, were approved as presented, without changes.

2. Public Comment
2.1 None

3. Reports



Legislative Update, Dana Carter presented:

There aren’t many updates at this point because we are in a season where a lot of bills are being
presented. However, one item on our radar is Prop 98 funds. There is just over $7 billion that has
been promised in Prop 98 but has not yet been expended. Organizations such as AXA, CCA, and
CAIA are working with our contacts in Sacramento to determine the governor's plans regarding
these funds. We know that the budget will be released in January, but as | mentioned, there are
promised funds that have yet to be expended.

We do have some healthcare grants available, including the Health Care Pathway Grant, which
some of you may already be familiar with. The third round of funding is approaching, and the
money has already been secured. However, we need clarification on how this funding will be
distributed. The goal is to work through regional hubs, but there hasn't been a clear definition of
what those hubs will be. We are requesting additional clarity on this matter, and as soon as that
information is available, we will share it.

The good news about WIOA is that Grant Award Notices (GANs) are out. Superintendents should
watch for these documents, which need to be signed and returned to the California Department of
Education (CDE) by January 16th. Our region performed well, with 75 agencies statewide receiving
an increase in WIOA funding, and many of our consortium members are included. In contrast, 135
agencies faced a decrease in their funds. This success emphasizes the strength of our collaboration,
benefiting both our students and our financial resources.

4. Discussion Iltems

4.1

Report Out on Funding Subcommittee re: Fund Distribution, Dr. Emma Diaz presented:

e Consensus: Keep a reserve of 10% of COLA to cover increased costs for Data & Accountability
purchasing (ASAP, NEDP, Aztec).

e Consensus: Disburse COLA per current allocation schedule.

o Subcommittee: Dr. Kevin Horan, Dr. Carol Tsushima, and Mr. Raul Pedraza

o The history of our journey is essential to understanding why the executive body decided
to pool all funds together initially. This approach allowed for distribution based on
submitted proposals. When we began around 2015-2016, neither Colton nor Rim of the
World had programs, and the county and colleges were in a similar situation. If we had
based funding solely on the number of students served at that time, newer programs
wouldn't have received support. Recognizing our progress over the years is vital, as
annual funding increases enable us to meet current needs and foster strategic growth
for everyone involved. | would like to share a timeline of this development over the past
decade.

o If needed, you could choose to implement this one year, and when we discuss the
CFAD—usually in April—we can vote on it since it’s due every May 2nd. If we ever
receive a substantial amount of funding and you decide to return to this option, you
have the flexibility to make changes on a yearly basis.

o The $502,356 will be distributed now, following the current distribution schedule, with a
10% holdback. Dr. Emma Diaz will provide updated contracts to each district.



o This will become an action item at the next meeting.

Member District 2015-16 MOE Funding 2025-26 Funding
Colton Joint USD 0 $1,028,551
Redlands USD $139,311 $1,128,512
Rialto USD $535,130 $1,415,152
Rim of the World USD 0 $97,817
San Bernardino City $5,926,321 $6,479,927
San Bernardino County 0 $605,053
Yucaipa-Calimesa USD $271,996 $793,383
Colleges (SBVC and CHC) 0 $961,337
Fiscal Agent $502,356

5. Action Items

5.1 Redlands Capital Outlay of ~$75K on Office Renovations, Mr. Mitch Rosin presented:
(See bids in Board Packet; Not a request for funds)

CAEP Capital Outlay Process: All capital outlay requests require an informational email stating the
following has/promise it will occur:

Consortium has approved the capital outlay and expense (provide date item was approved)
The project aligns with the Three-Year/Annual Plan for the consortium

Provide the quote for work done

The member must follow all state & local policies and procedures related to capital outlay.
This would include district facilities approval, following procurement processes, and
notification of state agency facility departments.

ALWNR

Once the expense is approved and aligns with the consortium plans, the consortium lead will need
to submit an informational email/request via the Support Ticket system to CAEP TAP. Please attach
the quote, if one is available, and acknowledgement of item #4.

The CAEP Office will review and reach out if they have any further questions. The email is
informational only, so if CAEP does not reach back out within 10 days with questions, you are
welcome to move forward with the planning of the project.

Virtual Vote Record
Agenda Item Number: 5.1
Motion: Approval for Redlands to spend ~75K on capital improvements
Motion by: Mr. Juan Cabral
Second by: Dr. Kevin Horan
Member Name AYE | NAY | Absent

Dr. Frank Miranda, Superintendent, Colton Joint Unified School District X




Dr. Kevin Horan, President, Crafton Hills College X

Mr. Juan Cabral, Superintendent, Redlands Unified School District X

Mr. Alejandro Alvarez, Superintendent, Rialto Unified School District X
Mr. Paul Sevillano, Rim-Of-the-World X

Mr. Mauricio Arellano, Superintendent, San Bernardino City Unified School X

District

Dr. Carol Tsushima, Administrator, Alliance for Education & SBCROP, SBCSS X

Dr. Gilbert Contreras, President, San Bernardino Valley College X

Ms. Cali Binks, Superintendent, Yucaipa-Calimesa Joint Unified School District X

The Minutes of the Inland Adult Education Consortium Executive Committee Meeting on October 24,
2025, were approved as presented, without changes.

e The italicized portion outlines the state requirement for capital outlay. We are presenting this
as an information item, but it still requires a vote from the executive committee. If anyone from
Redlands wishes to comment on this, please do so. This is just a formality, and there is no
request for funding associated with this item.

e Mr. Troy Martinez shared that Redlands is creating four offices in the front office area for its
counselors. It will need to make several building improvements, including adding fire sprinklers,
relocating the fire pull panel, and upgrading the HVAC system. The entire project is expected to
take about two weeks. It will begin next Friday and should be completed by January 4th, so it
will progress and finish quickly. This project has already been budgeted for.

6. Announcements

6.1 2024-25 Executive Committee Meeting Schedule
e Dr. Emma Diaz presented the EC meeting dates for this school year.

2025-2026 IAEC Executive Committee Meeting Dates

MeondayAdugust4,2025—NO-QUORYUM

August 12,2025 — Annual-Plan-Vete Friday, February 27, 2026
Friday,-September19,2025—NO-QUORUM Friday, March 27, 2026 — CFAD Discussion
Friday,October 24,2025 Friday, April 24, 2026 — CFAD Vote

Friday, December 12, 2025 Friday, May 15, 2026

Friday, January 30, 2026 TBD — Annual Plan Retreat



6.2

6.3

6.4

By the end of February, we typically know the preliminary allocations for the next year, so
discussions for our CFAD vote will begin then. We hold discussions about funding in May, but
the actual vote occurs in April, as we must submit our documents to the state by the May 2nd
deadline.

The meeting on January 30" was requested to be rescheduled due to the Access
Superintendent Symposium meeting scheduled for the same day.

Conference Report Out, Dr. Emma Diaz presented:
CCCAOE — Rancho Mirage, CA — October 22-24, 2025

o There was extensive discussion about the EL Healthcare Pathways Grant that will soon
be released for Stage 3. The grant is transitioning to a hub-and-spoke model. Several
regions of the state are planning to apply as super regions.

CALCP / CAROCP — Rancho Mirage, CA — November 19-21, 2025
CCAE Southern/South Coast — Palm Springs, CA — November 21-23, 2025

o Attendance was very low this year.

o Several staff members from ICEC were recognized with awards, including Mr. Raul
Pedraza who received the Dom Gagliardi Award. | would like to extend my
congratulations to them. It was a nice moment to see so many staff members honored.

o There was an excellent representative for the ESL workshops, which proved very
beneficial for our ESL teachers who attended. However, the content related to ABE
(Adult Basic Education) and high school was somewhat lacking this time. We provided
this feedback to the organizers to emphasize that, since we are investing money to send
our staff to these trainings, it is essential that the workshops address the needs of our
teachers. This, in turn, will help us better meet the needs of our students.

Upcoming Conferences and Professional Development Opportunities, Mitch Rosin presented:
CAEAA — San Diego, CA — February 11-13, 2026

CASAS Training @ SBCCD — February 25, 2026

ACCE — San Diego, CA — March 11-13, 2026

MPAEA — Las Vegas, NV — March 23-25, 2026

COABE — Indianapolis, IN — April 12-15, 2026

CCAE — San Diego, CA — April 30 — May 2, 2026

CASAS Summer Institute — Anaheim, CA — June 15-17, 2026

Data and Accountability Work Group, Dr. Emma Diaz presented:

The state has formed the Data and Accountability Workgroup to revisit the data collection
processes used in previous field teams from a decade ago. Currently, this data is not linked to
funding, and we are still discussing how to identify the gaps between our systems.

The workgroup consists of six individuals from the community college sector and six from the K-
12 sector, along with representatives from WestEd, CASAS, the CCCCO, and CDE. We have



already held three meetings and have three more scheduled, with the goal of completing our
work by March.

e One of the primary topics of discussion has been transition services. For the past nine years, we
have seen significant growth in this area through the California Adult Education Program (CAEP)
initiative. However, our data systems currently do not adequately capture the effort involved in
transitions, such as moving from adult schools to community colleges. The purpose of this
exploration is to identify ways to collect more comprehensive data on these transitions.

e We should also recognize Mr. Mauricio Arellano, who named ACSA Superintendent of the Year.

e Dr. Gilbert Contreras shared that they received exciting news earlier this week: we have
officially earned the designation of a Black-serving institution. Achieving this milestone required
a lot of hard work. A task force was dedicated to this effort, which was one of my priorities
when | assumed this position. This is a significant win for the college, and we are very excited
about it. We look forward to building connections with our partners to enhance our identity as
a Black-serving institution.

e Dr. Frank Miranda mentioned that they received the Golden Bell Award for their district. The
California School Boards Association recently awarded this honor—for the first time ever—to
their district, recognizing the work being done in mental health.

7. Closed Session
7.1 None Requested
8. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 8:32 a.m.

The next meeting of the Inland Adult Education Consortium Executive Committee will be on Friday, January
23, 2026, at 8:00 a.m.



CALIFORNIA
ADULT EDUCATION
PROGRAM

California
Community
Colleges

Request for Application

English Language Learner (ELL)
Healthcare Vocational Pathways Grant

Round Three

California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office
Workforce and Economic Development Division

Funding Period:

Funding Source
Total Amount Available:
Number of Awards

Anticipated Notification
of Intent to Award Date

Release Date

Questions Deadline:

Bidders’ Conference:

Application Deadline:

Administered by:

Page 1 of 38

July 1,2026 - June 30, 2029

English Language Learner (ELL) Healthcare Pathways Grant
Up to $55,000,000

Up to 25

May 19, 2026

Dec. 16, 2025

Written questions concerning the specifications of this Request
for Application must be submitted via email to
CAEP@CCCCO.edu, by 5 p.m. PST on Jan. 22, 2026.

Jan. 15, 2026, 10-11 a.m.

https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_v-
M9JbURRhCTYMKRrO0OG8A

Applications must be received by 5 p.m. PST on March 18, 2026

California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office
Workforce and Economic Development Division
1102 Q Street, 6 Floor

Sacramento, CA 95811

A11Y 12/18/25


mailto:CAEP@CCCCO.edu
https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_v-M9JbURRhCTYMkRrO0G8A
https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_v-M9JbURRhCTYMkRrO0G8A

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

Table of Contents

1. OPPOrtUNITY SUMMAIY c.uiiiiiieiiiieiniieiriee st e st e ssireessieeesssseesbaeessseessssaesssseesssseessssesssssesssseeenns 4
2. INErOAUCTION. ..ttt ettt st b ettt s e sat et e et e saeebe st e sbe e be e st enneenee 5
3. FUNAING OPPOITUNITY .eueeenieiieieeieeeeee ettt ettt sttt et sb et sat e b b e et esbeesesanens 6
4. VIiSION @NA INTENT ..ottt ettt et s b e s bttt n bbb ne 6
A. ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathways - Round Three: Centers for Innovation and
IMPACt in HEAIth Car@erS ... .. e 6

B.  Application REQUITEMENTS . .....cuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieerreeeeeerererreereereeeerrsrsrrrerrrra————————.. 8

1. Proposal ., 8

2. FUNAING et e e e s e s e e e e e e e e 9

3. Workplan COMPONENT ....uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitttetereeeteeereeeereeeeereererareeereeerrearrreaaeee 11

5. AWArd INFOrMAtioN .c.eouiiiieieieiee ettt s b e st sttt snesae b 12
A, AVAIlable FUNAING . coiiiiiiiieeee et e e e e e e s aaaaaeeeas 12

B.  AWard Project Period....oo.eeiiiiiiiiiei ettt e e e e e e e e e e e s e 13

6. Eligibility Requirements for APPlICANTS.......ocuivieriirirerirereeeeeeseesee et 14
7. Application and SUDMISSION c...ccviiiiiiiiiniiceeeete e sae e s re e e ssaesbaessaaens 14
A.  Submitting the Application in NOVA.......cooiiiimee e 14

B.  ApPPLICation DUE Date....cuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieeeeeeeeereereeeereesseeseeeersesssrserrrerraraee 15

C. Formatand Submittal ReqUIremMeNtS .......ccceeieieiiieieiiiccee e 15

D. Incomplete and Late AppliCatioNS.......uuvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeerereeeereeerreeeeereeeeeeeeara—.. 15

E.  RFA CLArifiCation ..cocioiiiiieieiieee ettt ettt e e 16

F. Bidders’ Conference Webinar .......c..ueeiieiiiiiiiiiiieeiee e 16

G. Allowable and Non-Allowable Activities and COSES ........cceeevrrrriiiiiiieeeeeerennanns 16

Page 2 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

H.  Administrative Indirect COSt Rate......cooviiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiicceeiieeceeeee e 17

8. APPLICAtION REVIEW .. .uiiiiiiiiieieeiteste ettt sttt st e s ste s ae s be e st e e beessaesbaesasessseesssesnsaenssanns 17
A.  Review and Selection ProCess .....cccuueiiiiieiiiiieeieeeeee ettt 17

B.  SeleCtion Criteria. . ettt e e e e s e 17

C. Anticipated ANNouNCemMENt DAt .....uuuuueiiiiii s 18

9. AWard AdMINISTIAatioN ......ccueviiriirerirteert ettt ettt sbesae et sttt e sbesae b 18
N €Tl o [=T - | O SO PP PP OPPPPPPOPN 18

S T (T o Yo T A1 o ¥ =P PP P PPPUPPPPPPPPPPPPPPOt 19

C. AP PEAIS PrOCESS. .. ittt nas 20

D.  ACCESS AN EQUITY ..uviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeieeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeseeseeeseseessessesrsesrsesssssrssaaees 20
Appendix A: Letter of Intent to PartiCipate .......ccueeeecieiiecieeceeee e 21
Appendix B: Application Sections, Format, and Content ........ccccocvueeiieeiieriesiiecceeceeceecee e 22
Instructions for Completing the Detailed Application and Workplan.......cccccceeeunnne. 22

1. Details (5 POINS) covieeeiieeiiieiee, 22

2. CoNtacts (NOL SCOMEA)..uuuuuuieieeeiiieiiiiieeee e e e e e e e eeevaaaes 23

3. Supporting Documents (5 POINtS) ...ceeevueieeiriiiiieeeeriiiee et 24

4. Program Workplan (75 POints) ...c.eeeeevriiieeiiiiiiieeeiriiieee e ee e 24

5. Collaborative Partners (NOt SCOred)....coeeiiiiiiiiiieiiieeeiieeeeieiieeeee e 28

6. BUAEEt (15 POINES) ceviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e et e e e e e e s sarar e e e e e e e e 29

STUAENT SUCCESS STOTIES .eiiiiiiiiiieieiiiee ettt e st e e s e aneeee e 29
SUbMISSION DAtes and TIMES...uuiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiee ettt e st e e s siaeee e 29
Appendix C: Consortium-Specific FUNINg Bands ......cccceeeiriiiiiinieniereneneseeeeeeeeeee e 30
Appendix D: Guidelines, Definitions, Allowable EXpenditures........c.cocueeeevieeeevieeceeseenieeieseene 37

Page 3 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

Guidelines, Definitions, and Allowable EXpenditures .......cccoeeeeeeeieieieeiieicieceieeeeeennnns 37

1. Opportunity Summary

Funding Agency:

Funding Opportunity:

Funding Period:

Total Funding Available:

Awards Available

Bidders’ Conference:

Application Evaluation:

Inquiries:

Page 4 of 38

California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office
Workforce and Economic Development Division (WEDD)

English Language Learner (ELL) Healthcare Vocational
Pathways (HP) Grant, Round Three

Funding is for a three-year period (July 1, 2026 through June
30, 2029)

Up to $55,000,000
Up to 25
Jan. 15, 2026, 10-11 a.m.

https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN _v-
M9JbURRhCTYMkRrO0GS8A

Applications will be evaluated based on scoring criteria and
assessed ability to meet project requirements and
deliverables.

Written questions concerning the specifications of this
Request for Application must be submitted via email to
CAEP@CCCCO.edu, by Jan. 22,2026



https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_v-M9JbURRhCTYMkRrO0G8A
https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_v-M9JbURRhCTYMkRrO0G8A
mailto:CAEP@CCCCO.edu

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

2. Introduction

Under the Governor’s Care Economy Workforce Development Package, the Budget Act of
2022-23 included a one-time appropriation of Proposition 98 funds to be distributed over
three rounds to support the development of limited-term, healthcare-focused,
accelerated vocational pathways for English Language Learners across all levels of English
proficiency through the California Adult Education Program (CAEP).

The 2022-23 appropriation, part of the Workforce for a Healthy California Initiative,
expands opportunities for individuals seeking to transition into health careers, with an
emphasis on supporting English Language Learners (ELLs) and other underserved
populations.

This investment seeks proposals to advance access to healthcare vocational pathways
through the development of accelerated learning models and the creation of Centers
for Innovation and Impact in Health Careers. Funded projects will design and
implement strategies to prepare adult learners for success in high-demand healthcare
occupations, strengthen regional workforce pipelines, and contribute to a more inclusive
and resilient healthcare system.

Through this investment, participants will gain the skills, competencies, certifications,
and licenses required to enter the healthcare labor market, retain employment, and
advance in their careers. This initiative aims to promote economic self-sufficiency and
upward mobility for individuals, while strengthening the diversity and capacity of the
state’s healthcare workforce.

To adhere to the Legislature’s intent and maximize program outcomes, the California
Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office (Chancellor’s Office), the California Department
of Education (CDE), the Labor and Workforce Development Agency (LWDA), and the
California Health and Human Services Agency (CalHHS) formed an interagency workgroup
and jointly developed a data-driven approach to guide the administration of this
investment.

This Request for Application (RFA) invites proposals from any of the 71 California adult
education consortia to establish Centers for Innovation and Impact in Health Careers.
Efforts funded through this initiative are intended to supplement and align with
California’s broader adult education and workforce development systems, as well as the
Governor’s Master Plan for Career Education.

The initiative prioritizes the implementation of innovative approaches and evidence-
based practices to strengthen pathways to healthcare careers for adult learners. This
work will be conducted through a collaborative partnership between the California
Community Colleges and K-12 adult education providers, ensuring statewide coordination

Page 5 of 38


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB179
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB179

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

and the consistent delivery of high-quality, accelerated training opportunities promoting
access to healthcare careers.

This document outlines the instructions, submission requirements, and evaluation
criteria that the Chancellor’s Office will use to select award recipients.

3. Funding Opportunity

The California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office invites California Adult Education
Program (CAEP) Consortia to submit applications for Round Three of the English
Language Learner (ELL) Healthcare Vocational Pathways Grant.

This funding opportunity supports the development of Centers for Innovation and
Impact in Health Careers, which will demonstrate program strategies designed to, and
driven from occupational healthcare pathways, to improve outcomes and reduce
persistent economic inequities for adult English Language Learners. This investment is an
opportunity for CAEP consortia to lead in the development of building adult education
healthcare vocational pathways within their respective regions for ELLs.

For purposes of this grant, ELLs are defined as individuals who are unable to
communicate fluently or learn effectively in English, who often come from non-English-
speaking homes and backgrounds, and who typically require specialized or modified
instruction in both the English language and in their academic courses. Participants must
be at least 18 years of age to be eligible to participate in ELL healthcare vocational
pathways programs.

Additional information regarding CAEP and the ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathways
Program can be found on the California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office website.

To become a grantee for this investment, CAEP Consortia interested in applying must
submit a single application in the Chancellor’s Office NOVA system, which includes the
signed Letter of Intent to Participate from Members (see Appendix A: Letter of Intent to
Participate), project workplan, budget estimate, and signed Letter(s) of Support from
employers and partners, by 5 p.m. on Wednesday, March 18, 2026.

4. Vision and Intent

A. ELL HEALTHCARE PATHWAYS ROUND THREE: CENTERS FOR
INNOVATION AND IMPACT IN HEALTH CAREERS

The Round Three investment intends to provide funding for the development, operation,
and evaluation of Centers for Innovation and Impact in Health Careers. Up to 25 Centers
are expected to be funded.

Page 6 of 38


https://www.cccco.edu/About-Us/Chancellors-Office/Divisions/Workforce-and-Economic-Development/California-Adult-Education-Program
https://nova.cccco.edu/

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

The intent of these Centers for Innovation and Impact in Health Careers is to drive
original, creative, and innovative efforts to develop and support healthcare vocational
pathways. These Centers are also intended to expand the number of ELL students
enrolling in programs, completing these programs, and preparing for employment in one
(1) or more of the eight (8) designated priority healthcare vocational pathway programs
outlined in this RFA (more detail below). These occupations have been selected based on
statewide demand, duration of training, and their capacity to provide access and entry
into living-wage healthcare careers for ELL students.

To successfully fill their intended role, Centers must be developed and positioned to serve
as hubs of expertise and resources while also strategically positioned to drive innovation
and maximize positive outcomes for ELL students pursuing vocational pathways in
healthcare. Key characteristics include:

e Hubs of specialization and expertise
Centers will build evidence-informed knowledge in specific healthcare
occupations, adult education accelerated training strategies for ELLs, and
workforce development models. This effort includes maintaining up-to-date
understanding of credentialing requirements, employer needs, and effective
andragogical practices for adult ELL students connecting curricular resources to
member agencies and partners. Centers will develop and apply tools, frameworks
and curricula that can be adapted or adopted by other programs across the state.

e Strategic pursuit of goals and outcomes
Centers will operate with a clear strategic plan for program sustainability,
scalability, student retention, and measurable outcomes tied to ELL student
enrollment, credential attainment, and transitions to both post-secondary degree
programs and employment. Each Center will establish and monitor ambitious
goals aligned with local and regional workforce demands and participating
consortium member priorities.

o Exemplifying operational excellence
Centers will demonstrate high-quality program design and implementation,
data-informed decision-making, fiscal and administrative stewardship, and
effective cross-agency collaboration. This design includes offering professional
development, technical assistance, coaching, and curricular resources to
member agencies and partners.

Page 7 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

Incubators of innovation and improvement

Centers will pilot new instructional and support models, leverage technology,
experiment with co-teaching or team-based delivery, and lead efforts in
applying accelerated learning models. Innovation should be paired with
evaluation and continuous improvement practices. Centers will document best
practices, successful innovation and lessons learned with the goal of sharing
valuable andragogical knowledge with other practitioners across the state.

Consortium and Community-wide impact

Centers should benefit the students, communities, and partners by actively
engaging stakeholders, building capacity across institutions, and fostering a
shared vision for healthcare pathway sustainability and expansion. Centers should
be able to document demonstrated success in achieving outcomes in healthcare
vocational pathways.

A consortium leading a Center for Innovation and Impact in Health Careers will
serve as the central resource and driving force for excellence, standardization, and
innovation for participating members and partners. Existing healthcare pathway
programs may be enhanced, or new programs may be developed. Student
progress and outcomes produced by the efforts of the Centers must be reported
upon and evaluated.

B. APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

1. Proposal

Proposals from CAEP Consortia applicants must:

Describe a Center for Innovation and Impact in Health Careers that includes at
least one (1) K-12 adult school and one (1) California community college district as
pathway partners. The intent is for K-12 adult schools and community college
districts to work in alignment on the development of healthcare pathways.
Additional consideration may be given for vocational pathway design where K-12
adult schools transition students into community college noncredit healthcare
pathways, and then onto community college healthcare credit bearing offerings,
including community college baccalaureate in applied learning.

Focus program strategies on the application of one or more accelerated learning
model(s) for in-demand healthcare occupations. Accelerated learning models may
include, but are not limited to:

o Pre-Apprenticeship
o Bridge Programs
o Dual Enrollment/Co-Enrollment

Page 8 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

o Integrated Education and Training (IET)
o Work-Based Learning

Align strategies to meet local or regional employment gaps and industry needs in
one or more of the designated priority healthcare vocational pathways.

Demonstrate capacity to engage effectively with employers in pathway design and
implementation, work-based learning, student recruitment, and job placement.
Strong proposals will include documented partnerships with healthcare employers
(e.g., hospitals, clinics, long-term care facilities, behavioral health providers) who
are committed to supporting English Language Learners.

Lead a local or regional community (or communities) of practice to support(s)
development, growth, and improved outcomes for ELL students in healthcare
vocational pathways.

Participate in statewide Communities of Practice led by the ELL Healthcare
Vocational Pathways Technical Assistance Providers (TAPs), which will serve as a
forum for sharing models, best practices, and approaches to addressing
operational challenges.

Designate a lead fiscal agent with demonstrated experience, ability, and capacity
to serve as a fiscal agent for other entities while administering the contractual and
financial requirements of the grant.

Demonstrate connectivity with local workforce development boards to ensure
that, where possible, training programs are added to the Eligible Training Provider
List (ETPL) as a source of ongoing, sustainable funding.

2. Funding

Applicants agree to comply with and understand that:

This funding source is specific to achieving the intended outcomes of
developing Centers for Innovation and Impact in Health Careers to drive efforts
focused on supporting the development of healthcare vocational pathways for
adult learners. This funding is separate from CAEP appropriation funding. Each
Applicant shall complete the tasks described in the application in NOVA. Funds
shall be expended in compliance with the requirements for the funding source.

Funding shall be used to support the development and provision of
occupational healthcare programs or new pathways in one (1) or more of the eight
(8) priority healthcare occupations through the creation of Centers for Innovation
and Impact in Health Careers:

1. Dental Assistant

Page 9 of 38


https://nova.cccco.edu/

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

2. Emergency Medical Technician

Medical Assistant

Mental & Behavioral Health Roles (including Substance Use Disorder
Counselor, Peer Support Specialist, and Certified Wellness Coach)
Nursing Assistant

Pharmacy Technician

Phlebotomist

Social and Human Service Assistant (including Community Health
Worker)

W

© ~N o U

Applicants may include a proposal to develop one or more healthcare vocational
pathway programs based on a healthcare occupation(s) not listed above (i.e., an
other occupation outside of those otherwise specified in this RFA).

Note: The applicant will be required to identify the other healthcare occupation(s)
in the workplan, provide a rationale for selecting the occupation(s), and must
demonstrate that the proposed healthcare occupation provides a minimum
livable wage in the county region where the healthcare pathway is being
developed, as well as evidence of hiring demand.

The proposal forthis healthcare occupation shall be supported by labor market
andwage datadrawn from the following specific state or nationally recognized
data sources. Failure to utilize at least one of these data sources to support a
proposed other healthcare pathway will result in the pathway not being
approved, which could put that application at risk for disqualification from
consideration.

1. Insight Center

2. Self-Sufficiency Standard

3. MIT Living Wage

All “Other” occupations will be reviewed for approval by the Chancellor’s Office with
regional wage information provided by the Center of Excellence for Labor Market
Research. The Chancellor’s Office reserves the right to deny proposed
occupations that do not meet the minimum livable wage-earning outcome
requirement in their respective region.

e Applicant shall designate and identify a Project Lead representative to oversee
the project objectives, deliverables, outcomes, and reporting requirements tied to
this specific healthcare funding. The assigned Grantee’s Project Lead will be
responsible for representing the Grantee during the term of the Grant.

e Applicantshall designate a singlelead Fiscal Agent for the consortium (or lead
consortium) to receive grant funds and be responsible for distributing funding to
members participating in the healthcare pathways project in a timely manner.

Page 10 of 38


https://insightcced.org/family-needs-calculator/
https://selfsufficiencystandard.org/California/
https://livingwage.mit.edu/states/06/locations
https://coeccc.net/
https://coeccc.net/

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

The designated lead Fiscal Agent will serve as the certifying authority on behalf of
the consortium and will be responsible for submitting the application via NOVA.

3. Workplan Component

Applicants must include the following details in the required workplan.

1. Grantee shall submit a Program Workplan by March 18, 2026, that:

A.

Demonstrates thoughtful consideration of program partners, CAEP agency
member selection, healthcare occupation program selection, and amount
awarded and how they were selected by providing a rationale supported with
regional, state, and national data.

i. Each consortium has the discretion to select its participating member
pathway program(s) and determine how funding will be distributed to the
participating member(s). Only consortium members whose programs are
selected to participate in the pathway(s) will receive funding. All members
of the consortium must approve the selection of the participating members.

Identifies and provides a description, supported with regional, state, and
national data, for each of the healthcare occupational program(s) that the
consortium and participating members will develop under this proposal. The
description must also include the accelerated learning model to be adopted for
each healthcare pathway intended to accelerate student completion rates.

Demonstrates evidence of employer commitment and regional collaboration
leveraging local resources and partnerships and identifies how partnerships
will be sustained post-grant award. Must include letter(s) from employer
partnerships and regional collaboration that clearly outlines the measurable
commitments the partner(s) will contribute to effort, time, and desired
outcomes. Examples of measurable commitments may include the number of
workplace learning opportunities, internships, job placement, etc., the
partnership will provide.

Identifies career & student support resources to be utilized to enhance student
outcome achievement. These resources include, but are not limited to, services
for refugee and immigrant adult learner populations, access to tutoring,
academic advising, student support services, career guidance, case
management, success coaching, etc. These supportive services can include
both on campus and community resources.

Includes a detailed budget as a funding request in alignment with the funding
bands shown in Table 1.

Page 11 of 38


https://nova.cccco.edu/

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

i. The comprehensive program budget should be broken down for each
consortium member participating in a pathway program funded by this
opportunity with object-level codes & clear narrative.

ii. Budget breakdown mustinclude how the funds will be distributed for each
fiscal year of the proposed work, including expenditure line item, all
services, materials, salaries, instruction, etc. Indirect costs should not
exceed 5%. The one-time 5% indirect costs will cover the entire project from
Round Three funding. The Fiscal Agent will be required to split the indirect
with the members that are providing the services to students.

2. Grantee and participating members are required to track student data and report
bi-annual expenditure and progress reports in NOVA throughout the grant
performance period, including a final report, to ensure measurable gains.
Reporting requirements, including impact metrics and outcomes include:

3. Counts of:
A. Number of ELL student participants enrolled in the healthcare vocational

pathway program.

4. Outcomes on the:

A. Number of ELL participants who complete the healthcare pathway
program.

B. Number of ELL participants who complete a healthcare pathway credential.

C. Number of ELL participants who transitioned into a non-developmental
credit college course, a credential program, or a higher education degree
program.

D. Number of ELL participants who entered employment in their associated
field of study after completing the program.

E. Number of ELL participants who increased earnings after completing the
training in their field of study.

F. Average ELL participant salary upon entering program.

G. Average ELL participant salary upon exiting program.

5. Student Demographic Background Information
A. Aggregate counts by pathway for age, gender, race, and language(s)

5. Award Information

A. AVAILABLE FUNDING

Round Three provides up to $55 million in available funding and may award up to 25 grant
awards. This RFA is an open competition with a variable award amount to each grantee.

Page 12 of 38


https://nova.cccco.edu/

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

Applicants will submit a budget in their applications in alignment with the funding bands
described in Table 1.

Up to 25 applicants will be selected using verifiable and validated data from state and
nationally recognized sources. Selected grantees will receive awards in a funding range
band based upon the following criteria:

1. ELL Student Count (DataVista)

2. ELL Resident Count (United States Census Bureau)

3. Unmet Demand in the Priority Healthcare Occupations (Chancellor’s Office
Management Information System Data Mart, Integrated Postsecondary Education
Data System, Lightcast)

A table showing the funding bands in which each consortium falls is listed below in Table
1. Details about the three criteria that determine the range are located in Appendix C:
Consortium-Specific Funding Bands.

Table 1.
Funding Band 1 Up to $1.5M
Funding Band 2 $1.5M to $3M
Funding Band 3 $3M to $5M

Regional allocation caps may be imposed upon individual applications in each of the
eight Workforce and Economic Development Division (WEDD) macro-regions to ensure
equitable geographic distribution of ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathways Round Three
Funding.

An award will be based on the merits and reasonable cost for the anticipated outcomes
and performance of the project. The Chancellor’s Office reserves the right to adjust award
amounts based upon the availability of funds.

B. AWARD PROJECT PERIOD

Round Three funding is to be expended within a thirty-six (36) month period and is
expected to start in fiscal year 2026-27 and run from July 1, 2026, through June 30, 2029;
no extensions will be approved. The Chancellor’s Office may terminate a grant

Page 13 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

performance period if a grantee does not complete grant reporting requirements
specified in the grant.

6. Eligibility Requirements for Applicants

All 71 CAEP consortia are eligible to apply for this funding opportunity. One application
per consortium may be submitted.

Applicants should have the operational and physical capacity to implement the grant,
manage the project, and achieve the performance objectives and expected outcomes of
the grant.

While this funding opportunity is open to CAEP consortia, it is an independent funding
source, separate and distinct from ongoing CAEP funding.

To be eligible for funding, applications must be submitted by CAEP consortia and include
at least one (1) K-12 adult school and one (1) California community college district as
partners.

Consortia may partner with one another and submit a collaborative application for the
creation of a Center of Innovation and Impact in Health Careers at a WEDD regional level.
Consortia applying in this manner must adhere to the following requirements:

e Collaborating consortia must designate and identify a lead consortium.

e Collaborating consortia must designate and identify a fiscal agent. Fiscal agent will
be responsible for distributing funds to all participating members and ensuring
that any Memoranda of Understanding or fiscal agreements are in place with
collaborating consortia for ensuring distribution of funds to their members.

e Collaborating consortia must submit only one application, which will be
considered for a single award. Additional applications from a consortium
participating in a collaborative application, either as an individual application or
another collaborative application, will not be considered.

7. Application and Submission

A. SUBMITTING THE APPLICATION IN NOVA

Applications are submitted in NOVA. To submit an application:

e Log-in using an existing NOVA account at https://nova.cccco.edu/.
e New NOVA users will need to request creation of an account.

To do so, use the Access Request Wizard (https://nova.cccco.edu/request-access).
This prompts the applicant to:

Page 14 of 38


https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/request-access

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

o Select an Employer (applying organization)
o Select a Program (select the ELL Healthcare Pathways Program)

o Select access Activities per need (Application activities plus other activities
if expected)

o Provide additional contact information and ask any questions for support
for new NOVA users.

e Existing users that already have a NOVA account but that require a modification to
their access permissions should submit a NOVA Support Request through the
support portal within NOVA.

After logging into NOVA: Go to the sidebar menu; select “Programs” then “ELL Healthcare
Pathways” and “Applications.” Click “Create Application” button to begin the application
process.

B. APPLICATION DUE DATE

The English Language Learner Healthcare Vocational Pathways Round Three application
and all supporting documents must be submitted and certified via the NOVA reporting
system on or before March 18, 2026, by 5 p.m. PST, at which time the application system
will close.

C. FORMAT AND SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

Applications will be submitted via NOVA. The NOVA system will prompt the applicant to
complete all required components of the application. Applicants may be required to
adjust their proposed budget, work plan, or other aspects of the application after grants
have been awarded. Printed or faxed copies of the application will not be accepted. Only
applications submitted via the NOVA reporting system will be accepted.

All completed applications must be submitted no later than the due date noted in this
Request for Application (RFA). No late applications will be accepted. The Chancellor’s
Office reserves its right to modify and/or suspend any and all aspects of this procurement,
to obtain further information from any applicant responding to the RFA, to waive any
informality or irregularity as to form or content of this RFA or any related response, to be
the sole judge of the merits of the proposals received, and to reject any or all proposals.

D. INCOMPLETE AND LATE APPLICATIONS

The Chancellor’s Office reserves the right to reject any and all applications received. An
application shall be rejected prior to scoring if:

1. The application is received at the Chancellor’s Office via electronic
submittal in NOVA later than 5 p.m. PST on March 18, 2026, or is incorrectly
submitted.

Page 15 of 38


https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

2. The budget request exceeds the maximum amount allowed as specified in
Appendix C: Consortium-Specific Funding Bands.

3. Any of the required components of the application are incomplete or not
submitted.

E. RFA CLARIFICATION

If any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission, or other error in this RFA is discovered,
immediately notify the Chancellor’s Office of the error and request a written modification
or clarification of the document. A clarifying addendum will be posted on the WEDD RFA
Website. Applicants are responsible for checking the WEDD RFA website for any updates to
the RFA or the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) document. Applicants will not be
notified of updates via any other manner. Written questions concerning the specifications
and instructions in this Request for Applications must be submitted by email to
CAEP@CCCCO.edu no later than 5 p.m. PST on Jan. 22, 2026. Allow for up to 10 business
days for a response to submitted questions.

F. BIDDERS’ CONFERENCE WEBINAR

The Chancellor’s Office staff will host an informational Bidders’ Conference Webinar on
Jan. 15, 2026, to provide an overview of the application submission process and offer
potential applicants an opportunity to ask additional clarifying questions. Failure to
attend the webinar will not preclude the submission of an application. The webinar will
be recorded for posting on the Chancellor’s Office website.

Date and Time: Jan. 15, 2026 from 10-11 a.m.

Webinar Registration: https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN v-
M9JbURRhCTYMKRrO0G8A

After registering, applicants will receive a confirmation email containing information
about joining the webinar.

G. ALLOWABLE AND NON-ALLOWABLE ACTIVITIES AND COSTS

Funds may be used to support costs associated with the development of ELL Healthcare
Vocational Pathway Programs, including program and curriculum planning and
development, program materials, instruction, equipment, and support activities. Grant
funds may not be used for student stipends, internships, or other methods to pay
students for participation in healthcare pathways. Match funding is not required,
however, consortia and members are encouraged to show how other funds will be
leveraged.

Budgets and budget narratives for the use of funds will be reviewed and scored as part of
the application process. Budgets without sufficient details or descriptions and/or that

Page 16 of 38


https://www.cccco.edu/About-Us/Chancellors-Office/Divisions/Workforce-and-Economic-Development/WEDD-RFA
https://www.cccco.edu/About-Us/Chancellors-Office/Divisions/Workforce-and-Economic-Development/WEDD-RFA
https://www.cccco.edu/About-Us/Chancellors-Office/Divisions/Workforce-and-Economic-Development/WEDD-RFA
mailto:CAEP@CCCCO.edu
https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_v-M9JbURRhCTYMkRrO0G8A
https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_v-M9JbURRhCTYMkRrO0G8A

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

include items deemed non-allowable, excessive, or inappropriate will receive a lower
score. Project funds are for direct services to the project only and are intended to
supplement, not supplant, existing investments. See Appendix D: Guidelines, Definitions
and Allowable Costs for additional guidance on allowable and non-allowable activities
and costs.

H. ADMINISTRATIVE INDIRECT COST RATE

The maximum amount of indirect costs allowed from this grant is 5% and must be shared
with the consortium members who provide training and support for students and the
Fiscal Agent. The Fiscal Agent will be required to split the indirect with the members that
are providing the services to students.

8. Application Review

A. REVIEW AND SELECTION PROCESS

Each application will be read and scored by three (3) trained reviewers from a selection
committee. The ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathways Round Three Selection Committee
can take a variety of factors into consideration in making their funding decisions and are
not required to fund the highest scoring applications that are determined not to align
with the regional plans and/or do not meet regional economic needs (Education Code,
Sections 88821 and 88830).

The ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathways Round Three Selection Committee reserves the
right to adjust the funding amount to align with the proposed scope of work in the
application. The ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathways Round Three Selection Committee
may, at its discretion, award less than the amounts requested, based on review of the
application and the committee’s responsibility to ensure a portfolio of awards that best
meets the needs of the region’s economy and the intention of the legislation. When
determining grant recipients, the ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathways Round Three
Selection Committee may consider past performance of grantees before awarding
additional funds to those reapplying for grants (Education Code, Section 88830(a)).

B. SELECTION CRITERIA

Applications are competitively scored, based on a 100-point scale, as indicated in the
table provided below. A minimum average score of 75 must be obtained during the review
process to be considered for funding.

Each section of the application in NOVA will be scored as noted in Table 2, below.

Page 17 of 38


https://nova.cccco.edu/

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

Table 2

NOVA Application Sections Ma'ximum
Points

Details 5
Contacts Not scored
Supporting Documents 5
Program Workplan 75
Collaborative Partners Not scored
Budget and Budget Narrative 15
Total 100

The application is provided in detail in Appendix B: Application Sections, Format, and
Content.

C. ANTICIPATED ANNOUNCEMENT DATE

Intent to Award notification will be made only via an official Intent to Award Memo and
posted on the WEDD RFA website by May 19, 2026. Selection of an Applicant to be
awarded does not constitute approval of the application as submitted. Before the actual
funding is awarded, the Chancellor’s Office may request adjustments or modifications to
the application and/or budget. The Chancellor’s Office reserves the right not to fund any
application related to this RFA for any reason.

9. Award Administration

A. GENERAL

Funds awarded by the Chancellor’s Office under this RFA may be used only for the
purpose for which they are granted in accordance with the approved application and
budget, regulations, terms and conditions of the award, applicable cost principles,
Chancellor’s Office assistance regulations, and other relevant provisions.

Page 18 of 38


https://www.cccco.edu/About-Us/Chancellors-Office/Divisions/Workforce-and-Economic-Development/WEDD-RFA

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

If any aspect of the approved plan for ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathways Round Three
grant changes, the grantee must notify the Chancellor’s Office immediately.

If a consortium withdraws from the ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathways Round Three
program, and funding has already been received, the grantee will notify the Chancellors
Office immediately.

B. REPORTING

Consortia grantees and members will be required to submit bi-annual reports on
performance metrics and expenditures, including an end-of-project final report in the
NOVA system. The required reports will demonstrate the awardee provided program
deliverables pursuant to the Grant. The Chancellor’s Office may, at its discretion, institute
additional reporting requirements or frequency as needed for the improvement of the
program. Ongoing contact with the Program Staff will be required. Program reporting
deadlines are outlined in Table 3. Dates may be subject to change.

Table 3: ELL Healthcare Pathways Reporting Schedule for Round Three
Funding

Activity
Period

Reporting
Deadline

Reporting Type

3/31/2027 15t Bi-Annual Expenditure and Progress Report due (Q2) 7/1/26-12/31/26

9/30/2027 2Nd Bj-Annual Expenditure and Progress Report due (Q4) | 1/1/27-6/30/27

3/31/2028 3'd Bi-Annual Expenditure and Progress Report due (Q2) 7/1/27-12/31/27

9/30/2028 4th Bi-Annual Expenditure and Progress Report due (Q4) 1/1/28-6/30/28

3/31/2029 5th Bi-Annual Expenditure and Progress Report due (Q2) 7/1/28-12/31/28

9/30/2029 6th Bi-Annual Expenditure and Progress Report due (Q4) 1/1/29-6/30/29

9/30/2029 Final Report due 7/1/26-6/30/29

Page 19 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA

C. APPEALS PROCESS

As described in the Chancellor’s Office Contracts and Grants Manual, an appeal of a grant
award must be in writing signed by the college president or designee, or by the head of a
non-district entity in those rare instances where such entities are eligible to apply under
the RFA. The appeal must be emailed to the Vice Chancellor of the division responsible for
funding the project (as identified in the RFA), with copy to the Program Dean and Program
Lead in charge of the funding, within 10 business days after the date the notice of intent
to award is posted. The appeal must specify the grounds of appeal and must be based on
the process and/or procedures used in the review and recommendation of applications
for awards.

The Vice Chancellor shall review all the information submitted with the appeal, consult
with the Office of the General Counsel, and render a decision within 30 calendar days of
the date of receipt of the appeal. The decision of the Chancellor’s Office is final. Appeals
shall be limited to the grounds that the Review Committee failed to correctly follow

the specified processes for reviewing the application. The applicant must file a full and
complete written appeal, including the process(s) in dispute. Incomplete or late appeals
will not be considered. The applicant may not supply any new information that was not
contained in the original application. Appeals should be submitted to the Vice Chancellor
at ACordova@CCCCO.edu no later than May 29, 2026.

D. ACCESS AND EQUITY

The recipient will comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. (These
include but are not limited to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 [P.L. 88-352], which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin; Title IX of the
Education Amendments of 1972, as amended [20 U.S.C. 1681-1683 and 1685-1686], which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, as amended [29 U.S.C. 794], which prohibits discrimination on the basis of
handicaps; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended [42 U.S.C. 6101-6107], which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; Title Il of the Genetic Information
Nondiscrimination Act (GINA) of 2008 [P.L. 110-233], 29 CFR 635.10 (c)(1), which prohibits
the use of geneticinformation in making employment decisions, restricts employers
and other entities covered by Title Il (employment agencies, labor organizations and joint
labor-managementtraining and apprenticeship programs - referred to as "covered
entities") from requesting, requiring or purchasing genetic information, and strictly limits
the disclosure of genetic information.)

Page 20 of 38


mailto:ACordova@CCCCO.edu

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix A

Appendix A: Letter of Intent to Participate

All applicants shall utilize the Appendix A: Letter of Intent to Participate in the English
Language Learner Healthcare Pathways.

Consortia applying to participate in the ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathways program
grants should complete a digital copy of this letter with each of the CAEP Member
Institutions that their members have selected to participate and upload it into the NOVA
application at the appropriate prompt.

Page 21 of 38


https://www.cccco.edu/-/media/CCCCO-Website/docs/guided-pathways/loi-appendix-letter-of-intent-to-participate-a11y.pdf?la=en&hash=C5FD8A87DFA30BF7928ACA23F5FAF0AB2415C5E9
https://www.cccco.edu/-/media/CCCCO-Website/docs/guided-pathways/loi-appendix-letter-of-intent-to-participate-a11y.pdf?la=en&hash=C5FD8A87DFA30BF7928ACA23F5FAF0AB2415C5E9

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix B

Appendix B: Application Sections, Format, and Content

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE DETAILED APPLICATION AND
WORKPLAN

The following instructions describe the content and format of the application and its
questions or prompts in the NOVA system. Only applications submitted via the NOVA
system will be accepted. To receive the highest possible score and to prevent
disqualification, the application instructions in NOVA must be followed, all questions
must be answered, and all requested information must be supplied.

1. Details (5 points)

Application Name

Fill in the Application Name. This name must include the name of the consortium
applicant (e.g., Antelope Valley ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathways Round Three).

Assurances

A duly authorized representative for the Applicant district should review all assurances,
certifications, and terms and conditions to familiarize themselves with the grant
expectations.

I. The applicant provides assurance that the Plan detailed in the application:

a. lIsaligned with the requirements stated in the Request For Application to:

i. Describe all activities related to achieving the intended outcomes to
develop healthcare-focused occupational pathways for adult learners who
are English Language Learners including through the creation of Centers for
Innovation and Impact in Health Careers.

ii. Designate a Program Lead for the Plan.
iii. Designate a Fiscal Agent for the Plan.

iv. Receive approval for selection of participating members from all members
of the participating consortium (or consortia).

v. Engage with community, employer, and other partners as applicable to
attain goals defined in the Plan, including providing letters of participation.

vi. Include utilization of one or more accelerated learning models within the
pathways.

b. Ensures funds are budgeted for eligible purposes for ELL Healthcare Pathways
funding as outlined in the Request for Application at the object level.

Page 22 of 38


https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix B

c. Incorporates data that can be utilized by policymakers, community college
districts, and regional partners to support and evaluate the program, including,
to the extent possible, demographic data used to evaluate progress in closing
equity gaps in program access and completion, and earnings of underserved
demographic groups.

d. Ensures that the participating consortium (or consortia) and participating
members have the operational capacity to fulfill the obligations proposed in
the plan.

The applicant agrees to collect and report program and student participation
data as outlined in the Request for Application.

2. Contacts (Not scored)

In this section, add contacts and assign roles for key contacts of the Consortium applicant
based upon technical NOVA permissions desired (described below), and not necessarily
based upon the title or function.

More than one person can be assigned the same role/permissions, and the same person
can be assigned multiple roles/permissions. For example, the Project Lead Contact may
also be the Plan Approver. In this case, enter the person twice: Once as the Project Lead
Contact, and once as the Plan Approver.

The NOVA roles/permissions are as follows (listed in order of access level):

Project Lead Contact: Edit & Submit Projects, Fiscal Reports & Surveys (can fill out
and submit all workflows and forms in NOVA; can view all plans and reports)

Alternate Project Lead Contact: Edit Projects (can fill out workflows and forms
only, but cannot submit; can view all plans and reports)

Institution Project Fiscal Reporter: Edit and Submit Fiscal Reports (can fill out
and submit Fiscal Reports only; cannot fill out workflows or submit them); required
for each participating funded member, NOVA will automatically prompt for this
based upon the Partners listed in the Collaborating Partners section of the
application

Contact: Edit Projects, Fiscal Reports, and Program Area Reports (can fill out all
workflows and forms, but cannot submit; can view all plans and reports)

Contact - View Only: View Projects (can view workflows and plans)
Fiscal Report Approver: Final certification/approval of Plan/Application
Plan Approver: Final certification of Plan/Application

Later, in the Program Workplan section of the application, collaborating partners are
defined and budgets set. After that section is completed, the applicant will need to return

Page 23 of 38


https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/
https://nova.cccco.edu/

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix B

to this Contacts section as it will prompt for an Institutional Fiscal Approver (same as the
Institution Project Fiscal Reporter) for each of those funded partners.

3. Supporting Documents (5 points)

Upload copies of the types of documentation listed below. The Partner Commitment
Letter does not have a prescribed format.

e Signed Letter of Intent to Participate from participating consortium members
(Required)

e Partner Commitment Letter (Required)

e Other (Optional)

Write a brief description for any “Other” types of file uploads.

4. Program Workplan (75 points)

1. Provide responses regarding the proposed Center for Innovation and Impactin
Health Careers that will be created through this funding:

i. Describe the Center and how it fosters innovation and maximizes impact ELL
students in occupational healthcare pathways. Include the proposed
organizational structure of the Center along with the overall vision, goals, and
target population(s), including specific strategies for serving English Language
Learners. (2500 characters)

ii. Include a clear purpose and function for the proposed Center within the
consortium’s region(s), as well as a plan for sustainability beyond this round of
grant funding. (2500 characters)

iii. Describe how the Center will support the participating members and partners
to implement and operate the occupational ELL healthcare vocational
pathway(s). This includes how the proposed Center will provide relevant
professional development, technical assistance, coaching, and curricular
resources to member agencies and partners. (2500 characters)

2. Provide responses regarding the healthcare vocational pathway(s):

i. ldentify the consortium member partners and programs selected to
participate. Provide a rationale supported with data for agency member
selection, program selection, and amount requested. (0-5000 characters)

Explain the process the consortium used to select the participating member
agencies (and their programs). Describe how the process sought to ensure full
member participation and approval in selecting the members' participating
programs.

Page 24 of 38


https://www.cccco.edu/-/media/CCCCO-Website/docs/guided-pathways/loi-appendix-letter-of-intent-to-participate-a11y.pdf?la=en&hash=C5FD8A87DFA30BF7928ACA23F5FAF0AB2415C5E9

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix B

The consortium must demonstrate thoughtful consideration of program
partners and how they are selected by providing a rationale supported by
regional, state, and national data for agency member selection, program
selection, and amount awarded.

The consortium has the discretion to vote to select its participating member
programs and determine how funding will be distributed to participating
member(s) for this ELL healthcare vocational pathway development. Only
consortium members whose programs are selected will receive funding. All
members of the consortium must approve the selection of the participating
member programs.

i. Select the healthcare vocational pathway(s) to be funded by this

investment. Complete the follow-up questions that will appear for each
vocational pathway selected. (Checkboxes)

This funding shall be used to support existing healthcare vocational programs
or new pathways within the adult education consortium. Select the
occupational healthcare program(s) that will be included in the project
workplan (applicants may select more than one).

1. Dental Assistant

2. Emergency Medical Technician

3. Medical Assistant

4. Mental & Behavioral Health Roles (including Substance Use Disorder
Counselors, Peer Support Specialists, and Certified Wellness Coaches)

5. Nursing Assistant

6. Pharmacy Technician

7. Phlebotomist

8. Social and Human Service Assistant (including Community Health

Workers)

Note: Grantees may submit a proposal to develop an occupational healthcare
pathway program based on a healthcare occupation that is not listed. The
Chancellor’s Office reserves the right to deny proposed occupations that do not
meet the minimum livable wage-earning outcome requirement in their
respective region.

Answer after each priority healthcare occupation(s) that is selected:
Select the Accelerated Learning Model(s) associated with this pathway.
Common Accelerated Learning Models include: (Dropdown)

e Bridge: Programs or courses that provide an
introduction/preparation to another program/institution; usually
short-term: intro courses, vocational orientation, boot camp, etc.

Page 25 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix B

e Pre-Apprenticeship/Apprenticeship: Pre-
Apprenticeship/Apprenticeship programs must be registered with
Department of Apprenticeship Standards, DAS.

e Co-enrollment: English as a Second Language (ESL) courses, work
readiness courses; enrollment in more than one core federal
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), Title Il program;
Integrated English Literacy & Civics Ed, IELCE; Vocational ESL, VESL

e Dual Enrollment/Concurrent Enrollment: Adult learners
complete college classes & earn college credits while completing a
high school diploma or equivalency.

e Integrated Education & Training: |[ET; programs that combine
adult education & literacy activities, workforce preparation &
workforce training; includes IBEST co-teaching.

e Work-based Learning: Learning that takes place in the workplace:
internships, work experience, etc.

Provide a description of how English language instruction, workforce
preparation, and workforce training will be integrated into the pathway
program(s).

Describe how this proposal demonstrates evidence of employer
commitment and regional collaboration to leverage local resources and
partnerships. Identify how partnerships will be sustained post-grant award. (0-
5000 characters)

Partnerships must include a partner commitment letter for employer
partnerships and regional collaboration that clearly outlines the measurable
commitments the partner(s) will contribute to effort, time, and desired
outcomes. The letter should be submitted in the "Supporting Documents"
section of this plan.

Some examples of measurable commitments are: the number of workplace
learning opportunities, internships, job placement, etc. that the partnership
will provide; description of capacity to recruit participants and engage
effectively with employers for curriculum design, work-based learning and job
placement; description of working closely with local Workforce Development
Boards to ensure that the training programs get on the Eligible Training
Provider List (ETPL) as a source of sustainable funding, as well as seeking out
funding to continue the program beyond the life of the grant.

Page 26 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix B

v. Describe the career and student support resources that will be utilized to
enhance student outcome achievement. (0-5000 characters)

Provide an explanation of how the program will address equity, access, and
wraparound supports for ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathways participants.
This includes a detailed description of the career and student support
resources that will be utilized to enhance student outcome achievement. For
example, this could mean services for refugee and immigrant adult learner
populations, access to tutoring, academic advising, student support services,
career guidance, case management, success coaching, etc. These supportive
services can include both on campus and community resources.

vi. Provide a description of strategies that will be implemented to improve
student transitions to both post-secondary instruction and employment.

vii. List the proposed pathways and target metrics. Ten rows are provided here
to list proposed programs; all ten do not need to be used. Enter "0” in any
unused or empty cells. If more than ten rows are needed, upload a file with
metric targets in the "Supporting Documents" section of this application as a
file type of "Other."

1. Grantee and participating members shall track student data and report bi-
annual expenditure and progress reports in NOVA throughout the grant
performance period, including a final report, to ensure measurable gains.

2. Reporting requirements include counts of ELL student participants enrolled
in the healthcare pathway program and a variety of outcomes to evaluate
student participation, completion, and transition:

e Name of ELL Healthcare Pathway Program

e Targetstudent enrollment count

e Target student completion count

e Target student transition to post-secondary count
e Targetjob placement count after completion

e Target annual earnings after completion

viii. Provide contact information for the lead Fiscal Agent and the consortium
Project Lead.

1. Provide contact information for the lead Fiscal Agent and the
consortium Project Lead. If more than one each is needed, attach as an
"Other" document in the "Supporting Documents" section.

Page 27 of 38


https://nova.cccco.edu/

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix B

2. The Grantee's designated lead Fiscal Agent for the consortium will receive
the grant funds via the State Apportionment process and is responsible for
distributing funding to members participating in the healthcare pathways
project in a timely manner. This lead Fiscal Agent will serve as the certifying
authority on behalf of the consortium and will be responsible for submitting
the application and workplan via NOVA.

3. The Grantee's designated Project Lead representative will oversee the
project objectives, deliverables, outcomes, and reporting requirements tied
to this specific healthcare funding. The Project Lead is responsible for
representing the Grantee during the term of the grant.

5. Collaborative Partners (Not scored)

The “Collaborative Partners” section of the application is for the purpose of listing
members who will incur costs and require budgets which will appear in the “Budget”
section that follows this section.

Select/enter the Adult Education partner/member agencies that will be participating in
the ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathways grant and will receive funding. This section
includes the community college and K-12 adult school members. Applicants may also
include the designated fiscal agent/lead representative’s organization that might receive
indirect costs.

There is no need to make an entry for the applying consortium as it will not receive a
budget and the funds will be shown in the following “Budget” section.

Each individual consortium member that is both participating in the Center for Innovation
and Impact in Health Careers and receiving funding must be listed in the "Collaborative
Partners" section of this work plan in NOVA. Members listed here will allow these
members to be available in the Budget section of NOVA, allowing the consortium to have
the ability to then create an individual budget for each participating member. This
includes the member serving as Fiscal Agent.

REMINDER: Funding is specific to achieving the intended outcomes for the ELL Healthcare
Vocational Pathways investment. As a result, funding must only be distributed to
members of the consortia participating in the development of Centers for Innovation and
Impact in Health Careers and, therefore, is not intended to be distributed across all
members. Only list participating members who will participate in a Center for
Innovation and Impact in Health Careers and receive ELL Healthcare Vocational
Pathways funding in this section.

Note, ELL Healthcare Vocational Pathway funds are separate from CAEP apportionment
funding and are not considered to be ongoing CAEP funding.

Page 28 of 38


https://nova.cccco.edu/

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix B

6. Budget (15 points)
First, provide a high-level budget narrative. (0-2500 characters)

Then, click the "New Budget Item" button and provide a detailed, object-level
budget for each Collaborative Partner for the three-year period beginning 2026-27.

Enter the budget for each participant.

DO NOT enter a budget for the consortium as it is not a legal entity. Rather, the
member serving as fiscal agent will include budget costs under the designated institution
name. Indirect funds may not exceed 5% of the total budgeted expenditures for all funded
participants, combined.

STUDENT SUCCESS STORIES

This section may be used after the program is underway and is not a required part of the
application. Submit any success stories related to ELL Healthcare Occupational
program/s when they occur. Success Stories can be added to a plan at any time without
needing to recertify it.

SUBMISSION DATES AND TIMES

Information Details
RFA Released: Dec. 16, 2025
Bidders’ Conference: Jan. 15, 2026, 10-11 a.m.
https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN v-
M9JbURRhCTYMkRrO0G8A

Deadline for Submitting Questions: Jan. 22,2026
Deadline for Submitting Application:  March 18,2026

Notification of Awards: May 19, 2026
Appeal Deadline: May 29, 2026
Grant Commencement: July 1, 2026

Grant Period End: June 30, 2029

Page 29 of 38


https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_v-M9JbURRhCTYMkRrO0G8A
https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_v-M9JbURRhCTYMkRrO0G8A

English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix C

Appendix C: Consortium-Specific Funding Bands

Use this table to determine the funding band for each consortium. Applicants may apply
for funding in their applications as noted in Table 1 in alignment with the funding bands
shown here.

Table data is sourced from the United States Census Bureau, Chancellor’s Office
Management Information System Data Mart, Integrated Postsecondary Education Data
System, Lightcast, and DataVista, including averages and projections spanning from 2018-
2026. Percentages indicate the weight for each criterium.

ELL ELL Unmet

Consortium Students | Residents Demand F‘I’Bndic';g
an
50% 25% 25%
Ab Regi
out Students Regional 4,675 447,046 1,940 3
Consortium- Riverside
Accel San Mateo County 5,099 291,187 7,152 3
Adult Education Pathways 1,652 3,559 2,627 1
Allan Hancock C.ommumty 2,761 81,780 1,468 .
College Consortium
Antelope Valley Regional
Adult Education 1,524 129,297 1,468 1
Consortium
Barstow Area Consortium
for Adult Education 106 6,101 1,940 !
Butte-Glenn Adult E
ute l.enn dultEd 852 32,108 2,627 1
Consortium
ital A e .
CToILEL G2 e ol 5,019 438,601 A 3
Regional Consortium

Page 30 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix C

ELL ELL Unmet .
R Students | Residents | Demand Fund';‘g
Ban
50% 25% 25%
Chabot-Las Positas/Mid-
Alameda County 5,244 397,374 7,152 3
Consortium
Citrus College Adult 2,181 99,594 6,540 2
Education Consortium
Coast Ac.iult Education 6,132 225.342 2,267 3
Consortium
Coasta! North Cour.lty Adult 2,427 92,842 1,984 5
Education Consortium
Contra Costa Adult 6,314 336,788 7,152 3
Education Consortium
Delta Sierra Regional
Alliance (San Joaquin 3,194 262,852 775 2
Delta)
Desert Reglonal 3,321 184,192 1,940 2
Consortium
Education to Career
MO UEEIL 4,804 218,779 1,984 2
Diego County
(Palomar/Vista)
Feather.Rlver Adult Ed 34 1,537 2,627 1
Consortium
Foothill De Anza / NSCCSTC 3,295 171,484 7,152 2
Gateway Adult Education 1738 117,471 775 )
Network

Page 31 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix C

ELL ELL Unmet .
T Students | Residents Demand Fund';‘g
Ban
50% 25% 25%

Gavilan Regional Adult
Career and Education 1,210 56,479 7,152 1
Services
Glendale Community
College District Regional 5,109 118,110 6,540 3
Consortium
Greater Opportunity
Through Adult Learning 1,801 70,365 7,152 2
'mpe”a.l County Aqu“ 1,447 94,788 1,984 1
Education Consortium
Inland Adult Education 3,350 289,214 1,940 5
Consortium
K A E i

ern Adult Education 3,961 337,982 775 2
Consortium
Lake Tahoe Adult
Education Consortium 169 2,854 2,627 !
Lasseanodoc Adu.lt 37 3,299 2,627 1
Education Consortium
L B h A

ong Beach Adult 2,339 179,620 6,540 2
Education
Los A Regi A

os Angeles Regional Adult 59,639 2,642,790 6,540 3
Education Consortium
Marin County Adult
Education Block Grant 2,481 34,595 7,152 2
Consortium

Page 32 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix C

ELL ELL Unmet .
R Students | Residents | Demand Fund';‘g
Ban
50% 25% 25%
Mendocino-take 650 14,962 2,627 1
Community College District
Monterey Peninsula 1,083 39,294 7,152 1
Community College District
Morongo Basin AEBG
Consortium (Copper 160 8,723 1,940 1
Mountain)
Mt. San Antonio Regional
Consortium for Adult 15,065 393,275 6,540 3
Education
Napa Valley Adult 1,355 34,021 7,152 1
Education Consortium
North Central Adult
Education Consortium 1,782 67,091 2,627 2
(Yuba)
North Coast Adult 188 14,867 2,627 1
Education Consortium
North Orange County
Regional Consortium for 7,690 361,652 2,267 3
Adult Education (NOCRC)
Northern Alameda
Consortium for Adult 4,375 219,515 7,152 3
Education
Palo Verde Consortium 146 16,064 1,940 1

Page 33 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix C

ELL ELL Unmet
Funding

Consortium Students Residents Demand

Partnership for Adult

Academic and Career 4,901 188,996 6,540 3
Education

Pasadena Area Consortium 2,975 170,281 6,540 2
Ranchq Santiago A.dUlt 17,777 323,570 2,267 3
Education Consortium

Rio Hondo Region Adult 6,720 214,347 6,540 3
Education Consortium

Sallnas'Valley AdUI.t 2,212 113,692 7,152 2
Education Consortium

San.DlegoAdult Educatlon 16,058 291,546 1,984 3
Regional Consortium

San Diego East Region

Adult Education 2,671 114,181 1,984 2
Consortium

san Francisco Adult 16,866 312,091 7.152 3
Education Consortium

San Luis Obispo County

Adult Education 1,131 36,894 1,468 1
Consortium

Santa Bérbara AEBG 1,335 55,550 1,468 1
Consortium

Santa ;larlta Valley Adult 1,325 76,648 1.468 1
Education Consortium

Page 34 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix C

ELL ELL Unmet .
T Students | Residents | Demand Fund';‘g
Ban
50% 25% 25%
Santa Monica Regional
Consortium for Adult 1,338 19,555 6,540 1
Education
Sequoias Adult Education
Consortium (SAEC) 1,796 130,050 s 2
Shasta-Tehama-Trinity
Adult Education 372 26,190 1,940 1
Consortium
Sierra Joint Consortium 1,068 73,563 2,627 1
A E i
Solano .dult ducation 1771 103,530 7.152 5
Consortium
S A
onoma County Adult 4,095 82,413 7,152 2
Education Consortium
South Bay Adult Educati
dy AdU Equcation 3,774 180,162 6,540 2
Consortium (El Camino)
South Bay Adult Education
Consortium/Southwestern 4,949 231,135 1,984 3
South Bay Consortium for
Adult Education 9,602 653,875 7,152 3
South Orange County
Regional Consortium 6,867 259,086 2,267 3
(SOCRC)

Page 35 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix C

ELL ELL Unmet .
e Students | Residents Demand Fund';‘g
Ban
50% 25% 25%
Southern Alameda County
ConsortlL.lm (Ohlone 2,209 3,124 7,152 5
Community College
District)
Southwest Riverside
County Adult Education 4,723 220,268 1,940 3
Regional Consortium
A

State Center Adult 5,656 381,729 775 3
Education Consortium
Tri City A .

ri City _dult Education 2817 152,041 6,540 5
Consortium
V A

SLUTTERETUS 7 b 5,440 250,554 1,468 2
Education Consortium
Victor Valley Adult
Education Regional 832 80,222 1,940 1
Consortium
West End Corridor/Chaffey
Regional Adult Education 6,172 351,364 1,940 3
Consortium
W .

est HII.IS College 934 44,954 775 1
Consortium
West Kern Consortium 110 11,604 775 1
Yosemite (Stanislaus
Mother Lode) Consortium 3,139 194,743 s 2

Page 36 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix D

Appendix D: Guidelines, Definitions, Allowable Expenditures

GUIDELINES, DEFINITIONS, AND ALLOWABLE EXPENDITURES

Guidelines, Definitions, and Allowable Expenditures Determining if a Cost is Allowable

All allowable costs must meet three primary criteria:

1. Substantiate that the cost was necessary and reasonable for proper and effective
administration of the allocations.

2. The cost must be allocable to the funding source activities; and

3. The cost must not be a general expense required to carry out the grantee’s overall
responsibilities (not supplanting). However, even if the costs meet the prior three
criteria, the costs must be approved within the statement of work/budget of the
grantee; otherwise, they are not allowable within that year without changes to the
statement of work/budget.

While the proposed cost is allowable under the funding source, is it also reasonable?

A cost is reasonable if, in its nature and amount, it does not exceed that which would be
incurred by a prudent person under the circumstances pre-vailing at the time the decision
was made to incur the cost.

Systems that can guide this definition are necessary for the performance of the grant;
following sound business practices (procurement processes, follow state and local laws,
follow the terms of the grant); use of fair market prices; acting with prudence under the
circumstances; and having no significant deviation from established prices.

What are the guidelines of allocable?

Allocable is defined by the dictionary as capable of being allocated or assigned. A cost is
considered allocable to a particular funding source/program to the extent it actually benefits
the objectives of that program. Grantees can only charge in proportion to the value received
by the funding source/program. An example would be that a Project Director works 80% on
the funded program (only 80% of the salary and benefits can be charged in the grant
application). Beyond this definition, allocable also means that the cost must be directly
related to the statement of work/budget that has been approved by the Chancellor’s Office.

What is supplanting?

English Language Learner Healthcare Vocational Pathways Grant funds provided under this
funding opportunity must supplement and not supplant state or local funds. Funding may
not result in a decrease in state or local funding that would have been available to conduct
the activity had these funds not been received. Funds may not free up state or local dollars for
other purposes but should create or augment programs to an extent not possible without
grant funds provided under this funding opportunity.

Page 37 of 38



English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Round Three RFA - Appendix D

Grantees must be able to demonstrate that Grant funds provide under this funding
opportunity are added to the amount of state and local funds that would, in absence of Grant
funds provide under this funding opportunity, be made available for uses specified in the
workplan. Allocation recipients and subrecipients must use Grant funds to provide extra
goods, services, materials, staff coordination positions, etc. that would not otherwise be
purchased with state, local, or other funds not related to Grant funds provided under this
funding opportunity.

Page 38 of 38



California i MEI\SORIA;NE:ZI\;
1 ecember 18,
Community

Colleges WED 25-83 | Via Email

TO: Chief Executive Officers
Chief Instructional Officers
Chief Business Officers
Chief Student Services Officers
Career Technical Education Deans
Regional Consortia Chairs
Adult Education Consortium Directors, Leads, Co-Chairs, & Members

FROM: Gary Adams, Dean of Adult Education, Apprenticeship and Contract Education, California
Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office

RE: Request for Application Release - English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Grant:
Round Three

The California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office, in partnership with the California
Department of Education, announces the release of the Request for Application (RFA) solicitation
for English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Grant: Round Three. This initiative solicits
proposals from California Adult Education Program Consortia to establish Centers for Innovation
and Impact in Health Careers. Efforts funded through this initiative are intended to supplement
and align with California’s broader adult education and workforce development systems, as well
as the Governor’s Master Plan for Career Education.

Under the Governor’s Care Economy Workforce Development Package, the Budget Act of 2022-23
included a one-time appropriation of Proposition 98 funds to be distributed over three rounds to
support the development of limited-term, healthcare-focused, accelerated vocational pathways
for English Language Learners across all levels of English proficiency through the California Adult
Education Program (CAEP).

To adhere to the Legislature’s intent and maximize program outcomes, the California Community
Colleges Chancellor’s Office, the California Department of Education, the Labor and Workforce
Development Agency, and the California Health and Human Services Agency formed an
interagency workgroup to jointly develop a data-driven approach to guide the release and
investment of these funds.

Through development of accelerated learning models and the creation of Centers for Innovation
and Impact in Health Careers, funded projects will design and implement strategies to prepare
adult learners for success in high-demand healthcare occupations, strengthen regional workforce
pipelines, and contribute to a more inclusive and resilient healthcare system.

Chancellor’s Office, Workforce and Economic Development Division

1102 Q Street, Sacramento, CA 95811 | 916.445.8752 | www.cccco.edu
A11Y 12/18/25


http://www.cccco.edu

Request for Application Release - English Language Learner Healthcare Pathways Grant Round Three
December 18, 2025

Application Information

The ELL Healthcare Pathways Grant Round Three RFA is available online and may be accessed at the
Chancellor’s Office website. CAEP consortia with intent to apply must submit an application, including
a Letter of Intent to Participate, project workplan, budget estimate, and budget narrative, on behalf of
the consortium and participating members via the Chancellor’s Office NOVA system by 5 p.m.,
Wednesday, March 18, 2026.

Bidder’s Conference Webinar

A Bidder’s Conference Webinar will be held to provide an overview of the project submission
process on Thursday, Jan. 15, 2026, from 10-11 a.m. Interested parties can register for the
event at: https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN v-M9JbURRhCTYMkRrOOGS8A.

Questions

Written questions concerning the specifications in the Request for Applications must be
submitted via email to CAEP@CCCCO.edu by 5 p.m., Thursday, Jan. 22, 2026.

cc: Anthony Cordova, Vice Chancellor of Workforce and Economic Development, California
Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office

Carolyn Zachary, State Director/Education Administrator for Adult Education, California
Department of Education

Memorandum | Page 2 of 2


https://www.cccco.edu/About-Us/Chancellors-Office/Divisions/Workforce-and-Economic-Development/California-Adult-Education-Program
https://nova.cccco.edu/login?returnUrl=%2Fwelcome
https://cccco.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_v-M9JbURRhCTYMkRrO0G8A
mailto:CAEP@CCCCO.edu

	2025-IAEC EC Mtg Min 12.2025
	ELL Application - caep-ell-healthcare-vocational-pathway-funds-round-3-rfa-a11y copy 2
	English Language Learner (ELL) Healthcare Vocational Pathways Grant Round Three
	Table of Contents 
	1. Opportunity Summary 
	2. Introduction 
	3. Funding Opportunity 
	4. Vision and Intent 
	A. ELL HEALTHCARE PATHWAYS ROUND THREE: CENTERS FOR INNOVATION AND IMPACT IN HEALTH CAREERS 
	B. APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

	5. Award Information 
	A. AVAILABLE FUNDING 
	B. AWARD PROJECT PERIOD 

	6. Eligibility Requirements for Applicants 
	7. Application and Submission 
	A. SUBMITTING THE APPLICATION IN NOVA 
	B. APPLICATION DUE DATE 
	C. FORMAT AND SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
	D. INCOMPLETE AND LATE APPLICATIONS 
	E. RFA CLARIFICATION 
	F. BIDDERS’ CONFERENCE WEBINAR 
	G. ALLOWABLE AND NON-ALLOWABLE ACTIVITIES AND COSTS 
	H. ADMINISTRATIVE INDIRECT COST RATE 

	8. Application Review 
	A. REVIEW AND SELECTION PROCESS 
	B. SELECTION CRITERIA 
	C. ANTICIPATED ANNOUNCEMENT DATE 

	9. Award Administration 
	A. GENERAL 
	B. REPORTING 
	C. APPEALS PROCESS 
	D. ACCESS AND EQUITY 

	Appendix A: Letter of Intent to Participate 
	Appendix B: Application Sections, Format, and Content 
	INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE DETAILED APPLICATION AND WORKPLAN 
	STUDENT SUCCESS STORIES 
	SUBMISSION DATES AND TIMES 

	Appendix C: Consortium-Specific Funding Bands 
	Appendix D: Guidelines, Definitions, Allowable Expenditures 
	GUIDELINES, DEFINITIONS, AND ALLOWABLE EXPENDITURES 



	ELL Letter - wed-25-83-caep-ell-healthcare-vocational-pathway-funds-round-3-a11y copy 2
	MEMORANDUM December 18, 2025
	TO: 
	FROM: 
	RE: 
	Application Information 
	Bidder’s Conference Webinar 
	Questions 





